
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 7, 2021 

b. Approve 2021 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and Training 
 

8. Employee Recognition 
• May 2021 Employee of the Month 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties LLC and B & K Turner Family LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 090 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from 
County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 
(Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 14, 2020 and 
November 9, 2020. City Council on November 16, 2020 and June 21, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on July 19, 2021.   

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. ANX C2100192 and ZA C2100192: Charles Alan Barge has petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 44.82 acres combined tracts known as TMP 070 050, located at 612 Duck Thurmond 
Rd, 2.98 acres; TMP 070 004, located at 690 Duck Thurmond Rd, 2.95 acres; TMP 069 037 located 
at 694 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.46 acres; TMP 069 089, located at 788 Duck Thurmond Rd; 2.96 
acres; TMP 069 036, located 840 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.38 acres; TMP 069 073, located at 914 
Duck Thurmond Rd, 7.09 acres; with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSRMM (Residential 
Sub-Rural Manufactured/Moved) to City Zoning of R1 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing 
Dates:  Planning Commission on May 10, 2021 and City Council on June 7, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on June 21, 2021. 

 

11. Resolution to Consider Adoption of the City of Dawsonville FY 2021-2022 Budget 
12. Award Bid - Allen Street Sidewalk  
13. Award Bid - Roadway Improvements, Phase I 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. Road Rehabilitation Joint Project – Howser Mill Road 
15. Financial Policy - Investments 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. Bob Bolz, City Manager 

17. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 
     ADJOURNMENT   
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, July 19, 2021 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 7, 2021 

b. Approve 2021 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and 
Training 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD JUNE 7, 2021 
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 7, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember John Walden, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly 
Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway and 
Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr.   

 

Councilmember Phillips was not present.  
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Illg. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason asked the residents to be in prayer for Roger Slaton’s family; he 
recently passed away.  Councilmember Walden announced his U8 All Star Girls Softball team took 
first place at the tournament and will be heading to Regionals.   Mayor Eason reminded residents 
about Food Truck Friday this week on June 11, 2021, and the next one scheduled for July 9, 2021 
which will also have a movie shown in the park afterwards sponsored by Mountain Lake Church.  
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by J. Walden; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (3-0) 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b, c, d) made 
by M. French; second by W.  Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (3-0)   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held May 21, 2021 
• Executive Session held May 21, 2021 

b. Approve Dawson County Chamber of Commerce FY 2022 Agreement with the City 
c. Approve Resolution and Adoption Agreements for Additional Retirement Plan  
d. Approve Georgia Mountain Regional Commission Reappointment of Betsy McGriff 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

8. ANX C2100192 and ZA C2100192: Charles Alan Barge has petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 44.82 acres combined tracts known as TMP 070 050, located at 612 Duck Thurmond 
Rd, 2.98 acres; TMP 070 004, located at 690 Duck Thurmond Rd, 2.95 acres; TMP 069 037 located 
at 694 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.46 acres; TMP 069 089, located at 788 Duck Thurmond Rd; 2.96 
acres; TMP 069 036, located 840 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.38 acres; TMP 069 073, located at 914 
Duck Thurmond Rd, 7.09 acres; with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSRMM (Residential 
Sub-Rural Manufactured/Moved) to City Zoning of R1 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing 
Dates:  Planning Commission on May 10, 2021 and City Council on June 7, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on June 21, 2021. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor. (3-0).  Mayor Eason conducted the public hearing.   
 

The following person spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• Cheryl Capwell, 202 Beech Tree Hollow, Sugar Hill, GA – She spoke on behalf of the 
developer/applicant providing details regarding the concept plan of the development along 
with information supporting the request to annex into the City.  

 

No one spoke in opposition.  
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (3-0) 
 

Mayor Eason confirmed with the City Attorney that the City has not received an objection from the 
County and stated the item will be on the June 21, 2021 City Council meeting for a decision. 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 7, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

9. PROPOSED FY 2021-2022 BUDGET:  Motion to open the public hearing made by W.  Illg; second 
by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (3-0) 
 

Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway provided a brief overview of the budget including some 
changes.   No one spoke in favor or opposition of the budget.   
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  The Mayor and 
Councilmembers complimented the staff and particularly Ms. Gazaway’s efforts on developing the 
budget noting the hard work that goes on behind the scenes while its being developed.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (3-0) 

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. FIFTY-FOURTH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL:  Kare for Kids Executive Director, 
Tiffany Buchan provided the preliminary information regarding the setup of the upcoming Moonshine 
Festival in October.  The discussion included placement of one and two-day vendors and food 
vendors, traffic, parking, road closures, trash, plans for restrooms and the concerns surrounding the 
use of the Food Lion parking lot.     Tom French and Shirley Hawkins from Kare for Kids also spoke.  
Mike Eason stated he would like to have the final plan presented for approval at the August 2, 2021 
City Council meeting. 
 

11. PLAN REVIEW ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT:  City Manager Bolz explained the need to 
have additional on demand service providers for plan review in the Planning and Zoning department.   

 

Motion to approve the quotes from engineering firms Peoples and Quigley, Inc. and Charles Abbott 
Associates, Inc. for on demand plan review services made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (3-0) 
 

12. SPEED HUMP HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION (HOA) POLICY:  Motion to approve the Speed 
Hump HOA Policy as presented made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  (3-0) 
 

13. BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST FOR CONCRETE PADS FOR EXERCISE STATIONS:  Motion 
to approve a budget amendment in the amount of $15,495.68 from General Fund Reserves for the 
construction of concrete pads for the exercise stations in Main Street Park awarded to Jerry Townley 
Concrete made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (3-0)  
 

14. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX:  
Motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement for the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax 
made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (3-0) “Exhibit A” 
 

15. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR DOWNTOWN PARKING:  Motion to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Downtown Parking made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (3-0) “Exhibit B” 
 

16. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT:  Motion to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement and approve a budget amendment in the amount 
of $156,028.56 from General Fund Reserves (60%) and Enterprise Fund Reserves (20% Water/20% 
Sewer) to fund the positions for one year made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. (3-0) “Exhibit C” 

 

Councilmember French left the Council Chambers. 
 

17. RECOGNIZE FORMER COUNCILMEMBER STEPHEN TOLSON:  Mayor Eason announced 
Stephen Tolson was unable to make the meeting but wanted to thank him for his service to the City 
and the residents.  He served almost four years and was an asset to the Mayor and City Council.  
 
   



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 7, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

18. RECOGNIZE RETIRING CITY ATTORNEY DANA MILES:  Mayor Eason recognized former City 
Attorney Dana Miles for the years of service he provided to the City; the Mayor and Council presented 
him with a clock in honor of his service.  
 

Councilmember French returned to the Council Chambers. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 6:05 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (3-0) 

 

 
Approved this 21st day of June 2021. 

 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
                 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
 
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "C"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:       APPROVE 2021 GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION (GMA) ANNUAL 

CONVENTION AND TRAINING  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO APPROVE GMA CONVENTION EXPENSES FROM 08/06 – 08/10/2021 FOR MIKE EASON AND 
WILLIAM ILLG TO INCLUDE REGISTRATION, TRAINING, LODGING, PER DIEM AND MILEAGE.      

    APPROXIMATE TOTAL IS $5,780 
 

    $2,070.00 (REGISTRATION AND TRAINING) TO BE PAID OUT OF FY2021 BUDGET; CHARGED ON 
CREDIT CARD TO RESERVE 

 

    BALANCE WILL BE PAID OUT OF FY2022 BUDGET; EXPENSES WILL OCCUR WITHIN THAT FISCAL 
YEAR  

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
          

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
    APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• MAY 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH – WESTIN LEE 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX C2100043 AND ZA C2100043         
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021     _____ 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #__________ NA _____________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____  Annual Budget:_____ Capital Budget  Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fun:_____ General Fund 

 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    PUBLIC HEARING  
 
ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043:  Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Tuner LLLP have petitioned to annex into 
the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acre (amended application) tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located 
at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted 
Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 
14, 2020; City Council on November 16, 2020 City Council postponed until January 19, 2021;  City Council on June 21, 
2021 and City Council for decision on July 19, 2021  

 
 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• The property fronts on the east side of Perimeter Road from Turner Drive to Dawson County 
High School. 

• The request has been amended to develop 70.808-acre tract with 124 Lots with a goal to 
develop max 212 Lots. 

• The density will be 3.0. 
• Traffic study has been performed; no mitigation required. 
• Planning Commission held Public Hearings on 09.14.2020 and 11.9.2020.  Several citizens 

voiced concerns in opposition. 
• Planning Commission recommended denial due to this Annexation creating an unincorporated 

Island and traffic concerns. 
• City Council held 1st Public Hearing on 11.16.2020 and postponed to 01.19.2021; placed in 

arbitration on 01.19.2021; Dawson County withdrew objection on 05.11.2021 (see Timeline 
Exhibit A). 

• If application is approved Planning Department request the City Council, consider the conditions 
as highlighted on Planning and Zoning letter dated 01.14.2021 (see Exhibit B). 

 
OPTIONS: 
 

 
RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 





















































































































































































































                                           
 

 

 
SUBJECT:   ANX C2100192 AND ZA C2100192         

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021     _____ 

  
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:       VOTE  
 
ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043:  Charles Alan Barge has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville 
the 44.82 acres combined tracts known as TMP 070 050, located at 612 Duck Thurmond Rd, 2.98 acres; 
TMP 070 004, located at 690 Duck Thurmond Rd, 2.95 acres; TMP 069 037 located at 694 Duck Thurmond 
Rd, 14.46 acres; TMP 069 089, located at 788 Duck Thurmond Rd; 2.96 acres; TMP 069 036, located 840 
Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.38 acres; TMP 069 073, located at 914 Duck Thurmond Rd, 7.09 acres; with a 
request to rezone from County Zoning of RSRMM (Residential Sub-Rural Manufactured/Moved) to City 
Zoning of R1 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on May 10, 2021, 
and City Council on June 7, 2021.  City Council for a decision on June 21, 2021. 

 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• The proposed density is .65 units per acre. 
• Planning Department recommends A 40’-foot undisturbed buffer be considered along the perimeter 

Lot lines 1 – 13 and 28 – 29. 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 10, 2021 and approved the request with no 

conditions. 
• Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the annexation request on May 6, 2021 and had no 

objections and did not take a vote.  Approval by default will be May 17, 2021. 
 

OPTIONS: 
 

 
RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning 

 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer 

 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 





































































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RESOLUTION TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

PROPOSED FY 2021-2022 BUDGET  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED FY 2021-2022 BUDGET BY RESOLUTION 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:     

• MAY 17, 2021 – COUNCIL & PUBLIC REVIEW OF PROPOSED FY22 BUDGET 
• JUNE 7, 2021 – PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED FY22 BUDGET  
• REMOVED ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR DDA BUDGET 
• INCREASED GENERAL FUND FUEL EXPENDITURE 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
   
    APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA,  
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING  

JULY 1, 2021 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2022 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville, Georgia has prepared its annual budget for fiscal year July 
1, 2021 through June 30, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council received a proposed budget on May 17, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(d) the budget was made available for public 
review at city hall and on the city’s official website; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(e) notice was published setting forth the 
availability of the budget for public review and in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(g) the 
notice included the public hearing advertisement on the proposed budget set for June 7, 2021; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed budget was held on June 7, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-6(a) the City Council has provided notice of a 
public meeting for June 21, 2021 to adopt the budget.  A copy of the budget is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Dawsonville, 
Georgia that the Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved, effective and adopted on this 21st day of June 2021. 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
By:       _____ 

             Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 

      _____ 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 
 

 
      _____ 
William Illg, Councilmember Post #2 

 
 

      _____ 
John Walden, Councilmember Post #3 
 

              
_____________________________________                
Mark French, Councilmember Post #4 

Attested: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



FUND ACCOUNT NAME FUNCTION REVENUE EXPENSES

100 GENERAL FUND 1100 $99,215.00

1300 $21,480.00

1400 $8,000.00

1500 $947,570.00

1565 $131,135.00

3900 $1,523.00

4200 $520,996.00

6200 $53,913.00

7400 $380,300.00

7540/7550 $37,000.00

$2,201,132.00 $2,201,132.00

275 HOTEL-MOTEL TAX  $5,502.00 $5,502.00

285 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY $29,400.00 $29,400.00

320 SPLOST VI $556,000.00 $556,000.00

505 ENTERPRISE 4300 $1,175,488.00 $1,175,488.00

4400 $711,337.00 $711,337.00

$1,886,825.00 $1,886,825.00

530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 4300 $225,000.00 $75,000.00

4400 $260,000.00 $410,000.00

$485,000.00 $485,000.00

540 GARBAGE 4310 $208,200.00 $208,200.00

790 CEMETERY 4950 $18,430.00 $18,430.00

FY 2020-21 TOTAL REVENUE $5,390,489.00

FY 2020-21 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $5,390,489.00

 

SEWER

WATER

SEWER TAPS 

WATER TAPS

SOLID WASTE

CEMETERY

PLANNING & ZONING

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

 

 

ELECTIONS

ADMINISTRATION

CITYHALL BUILDING

ANIMAL CONTROL

ROADS

PARKS

CITY OF D.AWSONVILLE

BUDGET FY 2021-22

DESCRIPTION

COUNCIL

MAYOR

Page 1 of 12



REVENUE

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
100-0000-311100 ELECTRIC FRANCHISE FEES                 160,000.00 160,000.00 160,000.00

100-0000-311315 MOTOR VEHICLE TITLE AD VALOREM TAX      58,000.00 50,000.00 120,000.00

100-0000-311730 GAS FRANCHISE FEES                      13,000.00 13,000.00 12,500.00

100-0000-311750 TV CABLE FRANCHISE FEES                 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

100-0000-311760 TELEPHONE FRANCHISE FEES                20,000.00 25,000.00 30,000.00

100-0000-311790 GARBAGE FRANCHISE FEES                  10,000.00 13,000.00 6,000.00

100-0000-311795 BROADBAND FRANCHISE FEE                 1,200.00 1,200.00 500.00

100-0000-313100 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX                  1,250,000.00 825,000.00 1,100,000.00

100-0000-314200 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX                      115,000.00 80,000.00 100,000.00

100-0000-314500 EXCISE TAX ON ENERGY                    50.00 50.00 50.00

100-0000-316100 OCCUPATION TAX                          34,000.00 30,000.00 21,519.00

100-0000-316200 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX                   210,000.00 205,000.00 195,000.00

100-0000-316300 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION TAX               7,500.00 8,000.00 10,000.00

100-0000-321100 ALCOHOL LICENSE                         27,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

100-0000-321150 CATERING EVENT PERMIT                   200.00 200.00 200.00

100-0000-322210 ZONING & LAND USE FEES                  9,000.00 6,500.00 7,500.00

100-0000-322215 ANNEXATION FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00

100-0000-322230 SIGN PERMIT                             1,500.00 0.00 0.00

100-0000-322240 VARIANCE APPLICATION FEE                1,800.00 1,500.00 3,000.00

100-0000-322250 DEMOLITION PERMIT 100.00 100.00 100.00

100-0000-322990 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY FEE              800.00 550.00 550.00

100-0000-322995 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY CLEANUP  0.00 0.00 0.00

100-0000-323100 BUILDING PERMIT                         60,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

100-0000-323111 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FEE            4,200.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

100-0000-323130 PLUMBING PERMIT FEES                    4,400.00 3,500.00 3,500.00

100-0000-323140 ELECTRIC PERMIT FEES                    4,700.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

100-0000-323160 HVAC PERMIT FEES                        4,000.00 4,500.00 4,500.00

100-0000-323900 OTHER - GRADING FEES                    5,000.00 6,000.00 40,000.00

100-0000-323901 OTHER - PLAN REVIEW FEES                12,000.00 12,000.00 3,000.00

100-0000-334150 SAFETY GRANT 3,000.00 3,000.00 500.00

100-0000-334200 HEALTH GRANT                            0.00 0.00 0.00

100-0000-334250 CARES ACT GRANT 0.00 0.00 50,940.00

100-0000-334310 STATE GRANT CAPITAL-LMIG DIRECT         32,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

100-0000-341400 MISC REVENUE                            3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

100-0000-343000 INFRASTRUCTURE FEE                      0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

100-0000-346100           ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHELTER FEES         2,625.00 100.00 500.00

100-0000-349300 BAD CHECK FEE                           0.00 25.00 25.00

100-0000-343001 ENGINEERING FEE 10,000.00 0.00 0.00

100-0000-351170 MUNICIPAL COURT FEES 500.00 0.00 1,000.00

100-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         2,200.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

100-0000-381000 RENTAL INCOME - DMC                     42,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00

100-1400-341910 ELECTION QUALIFYING FEE                 0.00 0.00 1,600.00

100-1500-311340 INTANGIBLES TAX                         55,000.00 28,000.00 28,000.00

100-1500-311601 REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX                15,000.00 9,000.00 11,000.00

100-0000-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 22,357.00 131,473.00 0.00

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  2,201,132.00 1,879,698.00 2,174,484.00

BUDGET FY 2021-22

GENERAL FUND - 100                            

Page 2 of 12



EXPENDITURES

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
 DEPARTMENT: COUNCIL   
100-1100-511000 COUNCIL: SALARIES                                34,000.00 34,000.00 34,000.00

100-1100-512100 COUNCIL: GROUP INSURANCE                         56,535.00 56,535.00 56,075.00

100-1100-512200 COUNCIL: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 2,600.00 2,600.00 2,600.00

100-1100-523200 COUNCIL: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE   4,080.00 4,080.00 3,630.00

100-1100-523500 COUNCIL: TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 6,320.00

100-1100-523700 COUNCIL: EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,000.00 1,000.00 5,000.00
 DEPARTMENT: MAYOR      
100-1300-511000 MAYOR: SALARIES                                17,000.00 17,000.00 14,600.00

100-1300-512100 MAYOR: GROUP INSURANCE                         60.00 60.00 14,000.00

100-1300-512200 MAYOR: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 1,300.00 1,300.00 950.00

100-1300-523200 MAYOR: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE 1,020.00 1,020.00 1,470.00

100-1300-523500 MAYOR: TRAVEL                                  1,100.00 1,000.00 6,000.00

100-1300-523700 MAYOR: EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,000.00 1,000.00 5,000.00
 DEPARTMENT: ELECTIONS    
100-1400-521203 ELECTIONS: PROFESSIONAL OTHER                 8,000.00 0.00 12,200.00

100-1400-523300 ELECTIONS: ADVERTISING                             0.00 0.00 1,200.00

100-1400-523400 ELECTIONS: PRINTING AND BINDING                    0.00 0.00 450.00

100-1400-531100 ELECTIONS: SUPPLIES                                0.00 0.00 150.00
 DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION    
100-1500-511000 ADMINISTRATION: SALARIES                                360,597.00 338,798.00 332,616.00

100-1500-512100 ADMINISTRATION: GROUP INSURANCE           153,948.00 117,948.00 110,900.00

100-1500-512200 ADMINISTRATION: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA     31,251.00 25,919.00 25,445.00

100-1500-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                19,800.00 19,800.00 13,500.00

100-1500-512700 WORKERS COMP                            4,313.00 1,500.00 600.00

100-1500-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      98,806.00 85,000.00 112,410.00

100-1500-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00

100-1500-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      15,035.00 15,000.00 15,000.00

100-1500-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES (IT)                 19,245.00 15,000.00 26,000.00

100-1500-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES-PAYROLL ACH          3,200.00 3,100.00 2,700.00

100-1500-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   4,039.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

100-1500-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT       2,705.00 2,400.00 3,600.00

100-1500-523000 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                32,000.00 15,000.00 11,200.00

100-1500-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               23,100.00 23,100.00 20,000.00

100-1500-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          10,138.00 10,000.00 11,400.00

100-1500-523300 ADVERTISING                             1,500.00 1,000.00 5,000.00

100-1500-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,056.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

100-1500-523500 TRAVEL                                  4,000.00 4,000.00 18,000.00

100-1500-523600 DUES & FEES                             12,019.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

100-1500-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 4,000.00 11,500.00

100-1500-523910 UNIFORMS 300.00 300.00 500.00

100-1500-531100 SUPPLIES                                25,000.00 18,000.00 40,000.00

100-1500-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  1,400.00 1,000.00 1,400.00

100-1500-531300 FOOD                                    2,500.00 2,500.00 4,000.00

100-1500-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,000.00 0.00 0.00

100-1500-581000 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00

100-1500-999999 PMTS TO OTHER - DAWSON 93,618.00 0.00 0.00
 DEPARTMENT: CITYHALL BLDG            
100-1565-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      4,000.00 2,000.00 3,000.00

100-1565-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   43,000.00 43,000.00 45,000.00

100-1565-522201 R & M - GRHOF 2,000.00 0.00 0.00

GENERAL FUND - 100                            

Page 3 of 12



100-1565-522202 R & M - DISTILLERY 2,000.00 0.00 0.00

100-1565-531100 SUPPLIES                                25,000.00 22,000.00 45,000.00

100-1565-531220 ENERGY NATURAL GAS                      8,563.00 8,000.00 9,000.00

100-1565-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      46,572.00 43,000.00 52,000.00
 DEPARTMENT: ANIMAL CONTROL              
100-3900-523600 DUES & FEES                             500.00 500.00 500.00

100-3900-531100 SUPPLIES                                1,023.00 1,000.00 1,500.00
 DEPARTMENT: ROADS                       
100-4200-511000 SALARIES                                244,000.00 228,980.00 216,823.00

100-4200-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         75,000.00 74,970.00 64,866.00

100-4200-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 21,000.00 17,517.00 16,587.00

100-4200-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                3,400.00 3,300.00 1,980.00

100-4200-512700 WORKERS COMP                            27,000.00 16,000.00 7,000.00

100-4200-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      6,000.00 7,500.00 7,500.00

100-4200-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                4,500.00 4,500.00 5,000.00

100-4200-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

100-4200-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        1,200.00 1,200.00 2,000.00

100-4200-522140 STREET SWEEPING/GROUNDSUP               12,500.00 12,600.00 12,600.00

100-4200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   35,000.00 52,000.00 50,000.00

100-4200-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,120.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

100-4200-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    100.00 100.00 100.00

100-4200-523500 TRAVEL                                  2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

100-4200-523600 DUES & FEES                             1,513.00 1,500.00 1,000.00

100-4200-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,500.00 1,500.00 3,000.00

100-4200-523910 UNIFORM SERVICE                         2,762.00 2,500.00 2,000.00

100-4200-531100 SUPPLIES                                19,330.00 17,500.00 17,500.00

100-4200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      43,318.00 40,000.00 42,000.00

100-4200-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      2,000.00 500.00 1,200.00

100-4200-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  6,753.00 6,350.00 6,328.00

100-4200-541400 INFRASTRUCTURE-GDOT LMIG                0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
 DEPARTMENT: PARKS                       
100-6200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   20,000.00 17,000.00 20,000.00

100-6200-531100 SUPPLIES                                15,000.00 12,000.00 20,000.00

100-6200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      18,913.00 18,000.00 18,000.00

100-6200-542100 CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS 0.00 0.00 50,940.00
 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & ZONING           
100-7400-511000 SALARIES                                204,000.00 144,127.00 169,786.00

100-7400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         39,000.00 36,168.00 58,045.00

100-7400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 17,900.00 11,026.00 12,989.00

100-7400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                3,200.00 2,800.00 1,900.00

100-7400-512700           WORKERS COMP                            0.00 2,800.00 1,900.00

100-7400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      43,000.00 40,000.00 45,834.00

100-7400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                11,000.00 1,500.00 5,000.00

100-7400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      18,000.00 16,500.00 20,500.00

100-7400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      9,000.00 9,000.00 8,400.00

100-7400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   1,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00

100-7400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 4,400.00 1,400.00 1,500.00

100-7400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,000.00 4,700.00 5,440.00

100-7400-523300 ADVERTISING                             1,400.00 1,250.00 1,250.00

100-7400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    500.00 100.00 100.00

100-7400-523500 TRAVEL                                  3,000.00 3,000.00 4,000.00

100-7400-523600 DUES & FEES                             2,500.00 2,250.00 2,250.00

100-7400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 3,500.00 5,500.00

100-7400-523800 LICENSES 400.00 400.00 150.00

100-7400-523910 UNIFORMS 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

100-7400-531100 SUPPLIES                                10,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

Page 4 of 12



100-7400-321270 ENERGY-GASOLINE / DIESEL 1,500.00 1,000.00 2,000.00

100-7400-541400 CAPITAL - PROPERTY (VEHICLE) 0.00 0.00 30,000.00
 DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT               
100-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce)          12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

100-7550-531000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (DDA)             25,000.00 17,500.00 42,500.00

GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  2,201,132.00 1,882,498.00 2,176,384.00

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  2,201,132.00
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  2,201,132.00

REVENUE                                                                  HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
275-0000-314100 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                         5,502.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 5,502.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

EXPENDITURES                                                                  HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
275-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce) 5,502.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 5,502.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 5,502.00
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 5,502.00

Page 5 of 12



REVENUE

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
285-7550-000000 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  (DDA)        25,000.00 17,500.00 42,500.00

285-7500-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 4,400.00 25,000.00 0.00

DDA FUND 275 Revenue Totals 29,400.00 42,500.00 42,500.00

EXPENDITURES

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
285-7500-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

285-7500-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

285-7500-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      0.00 2,400.00 2,400.00

285-7500-523300           ADVERTISING                             0.00 200.00 200.00

285-7500-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

285-7500-531000           FIREWORKS PURCHASE                      0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

285-7500-531100           SUPPLIES                                0.00 500.00 500.00

285-7500-540000           GRANT DISBURSEMENTS                     25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

285-7550-531000 OTHER EXPENDITURES FROM RESERVES 0.00 0.00 0.00

DDA FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 29,400.00 42,500.00 42,500.00

DDA FUND 275 Revenue Totals 29,400.00
DDA FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 29,400.00

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

Page 6 of 12



REVENUE

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
320-0000-313200 SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 0.00 1,062,750.00 1,417,000.00

320-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         300.00 2,000.00 8,000.00

320-0000-361000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 555,700.00 0.00 387,912.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 556,000.00 1,064,750.00 1,812,912.00

EXPENDITURES

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
320-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUISITION  0.00 680,000.00 468,912.00

320-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEWALKS    494,000.00 375,750.00 384,000.00

320-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-R 0.00 0.00 45,000.00

320-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00 27,500.00

320-4300-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-S 0.00 0.00 0.00

320-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00 87,500.00

320-4400-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-W 0.00 0.00 0.00

320-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         62,000.00 9,000.00 800,000.00

320-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECREATION   0.00 0.00 0.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 556,000.00 1,064,750.00 1,812,912.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 556,000.00
 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 556,000.00

SPLOST VI FUND - 320                           

SPLOST VI FUND - 320                           

Page 7 of 12



REVENUE

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
505-0000-341400        MISC REV/COPIES/PRINTING                3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

505-0000-344210        WATER CHARGES                           710,000.00 680,000.00 680,000.00

505-0000-344255        SEWERAGE CHARGES                        810,000.00 794,000.00 794,000.00

505-0000-349000        ADMINISTRATIVE FEE                      6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

505-0000-349001        PENALTIES WATER & SEWER                 17,000.00 26,000.00 26,000.00

505-0000-349002        RECONNECT FEE                           6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

505-0000-349300        BAD CHECK FEE                           700.00 600.00 600.00

505-0000-351400        FINES                                   500.00 500.00 500.00

505-0000-361000        INTEREST INCOME                         3,400.00 16,118.00 16,118.00

505-0000-381001        RENTAL INCOME HOUSE                     9,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00

505-0000-383000 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DAMAGED PROPERTY 0.00 0.00 0.00

505-0000-611000 OTHER FINANCING USES (RESERVES) 321,225.00 138,092.00 127,776.00

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 1,886,825.00 1,679,310.00 1,668,994.00

EXPENDITURES

Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget
DEPARTMENT: SEWER                       

505-4300-511000 SALARIES                                173,701.00 148,701.00 158,869.00

505-4300-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         62,000.00 42,528.00 44,725.00

505-4300-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 13,889.00 11,376.00 12,153.00

505-4300-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                11,000.00 8,500.00 8,250.00

505-4300-512700 WORKERS COMP                            9,667.00 6,500.00 4,000.00

505-4300-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      3,496.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

505-4300-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

505-4300-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                51,294.00 40,000.00 60,000.00

505-4300-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      15,078.00 15,000.00 20,000.00

505-4300-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      14,080.00 14,000.00 14,000.00

505-4300-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES: ENVIR MGMT          44,354.00 40,000.00 40,000.00

505-4300-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES                        7,500.00 7,500.00 4,750.00

505-4300-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   55,000.00 55,000.00 75,000.00

505-4300-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00

505-4300-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          6,063.00 6,000.00 8,000.00

505-4300-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,200.00 2,200.00 5,500.00

505-4300-523300 ADVERTISING                             350.00 350.00 350.00

505-4300-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

505-4300-523500 TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

505-4300-523600 DUES & FEES                             4,000.00 4,000.00 4,700.00

505-4300-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    2,000.00 2,000.00 3,000.00

505-4300-523800 LICENSES                                100.00 100.00 100.00

505-4300-523910 UNIFORMS                       1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

505-4300-531100 SUPPLIES                                30,553.00 30,000.00 39,000.00

505-4300-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      124,693.00 116,000.00 116,000.00

505-4300-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      1,300.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

505-4300-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  4,764.00 4,500.00 4,500.00

505-4300-531300 FOOD                                    1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

505-4300-561000 DEPRECIATION                            428,000.00 428,000.00 330,000.00

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505                            

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505                           

Page 8 of 12



505-4300-572000 PAYMENTS TO OTHER - DAWSON 31,206.00 0.00 0.00

505-4300-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014                      50,000.00 50,000.00 82,000.00

 DEPARTMENT: WATER                       
505-4400-511000 SALARIES                                173,701.00 148,701.00 158,869.00

505-4400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         62,000.00 42,528.00 44,725.00

505-4400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 13,889.00 11,376.00 12,153.00

505-4400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                11,000.00 8,500.00 8,250.00

505-4400-512700 WORKERS COMP                            9,667.00 6,200.00 6,000.00

505-4400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      5,596.00 4,000.00 10,000.00

505-4400-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

505-4400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                11,427.00 7,000.00 13,000.00

505-4400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

505-4400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      13,603.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

505-4400-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        1,000.00 1,000.00 600.00

505-4400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   25,000.00 25,000.00 40,000.00

505-4400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT              1,476.00 1,200.00 1,000.00

505-4400-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE (GIRMA) 13,000.00 13,000.00 12,500.00

505-4400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          8,081.00 8,000.00 8,400.00

505-4400-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,200.00 2,200.00 5,000.00

505-4400-523300 ADVERTISING                             650.00 650.00 650.00

505-4400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,100.00 1,100.00 1,100.00

505-4400-523500 TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

505-4400-523600 DUES & FEES                             12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

505-4400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

505-4400-523800 LICENSES                                500.00 500.00 200.00

505-4400-523910 UNIFORMS                     1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

505-4400-531100 SUPPLIES                                45,623.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

505-4400-531115 SUPPLIES: CHEMICALS             36,247.00 32,500.00 32,500.00

505-4400-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      18,708.00 18,000.00 18,000.00

505-4400-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      950.00 950.00 950.00

505-4400-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  4,764.00 4,500.00 4,500.00

505-4400-531300 FOOD                                    1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

505-4400-531510 WATER PURCHASED FROM EWSA               0.00 0.00 0.00

505-4400-561000 DEPRECIATION                            146,000.00 146,000.00 100,000.00

505-440-572000 PAYMENTS TO OTHER - DAWSON 31,205.00 0.00 0.00

505-4400-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014                      37,450.00 37,450.00 29,000.00

GRAND TOTAL of EXPENDITURES: 1,886,825.00 1,679,310.00 1,668,994.00

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 1,886,825.00
GRAND TOTAL of EXPENDITURES: 1,886,825.00

SEWER 1,175,488.00
WATER 711,337.00

Page 9 of 12



REVENUE                                                         ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

530-0000-344257 SEWER TAPS                              225,000.00 225,000.00 475,000.00

530-0000-344212 WATER TAPS                              260,000.00 275,000.00 525,000.00

530-0000-610000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 0.00 500,000.00 0.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 485,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

EXPENDITURES                                                         ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

530-4300-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER                  150,000.00 800,000.00 900,000.00

530-4400-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER                  50,000.00 200,000.00 100,000.00

TRANSFER TO FUND 505 285,000.00 0.00 0.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 485,000.00 800,000.00 1,000,000.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 485,000.00
ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 485,000.00

Page 10 of 12



REVENUE                                                                       GARBAGE FUND - 540
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

540-0000-344110 REFUSE COLLECTION CHARGES               203,500.00 203,500.00 171,000.00

540-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 4,700.00 0.00 0.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 208,200.00 203,500.00 171,000.00

EXPENDITURES                                                                       GARBAGE FUND - 540
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

540-4310-511000 SALARIES                                0.00 0.00 0.00

540-4310-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         0.00 0.00 0.00

540-4310-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 0.00 0.00 0.00

540-4310-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES                        175,000.00 173,946.00 147,600.00

540-4310-523300 ADVERTISING                             200.00 200.00 200.00

540-4310-531100 SUPPLIES                                33,000.00 29,354.00 23,050.00

540-4310-574000 BAD DEBT 0.00 0.00 150.00

540-4310-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY - BUILDING 0.00 0.00 0.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 208,200.00 203,500.00 171,000.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 208,200.00
GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 208,200.00

Page 11 of 12



REVENUE                                                                      CEMETERY FUND - 790
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

790-0000-321210 REAL ESTATE FEES                        200.00 150.00 180.00

790-0000-349100 CEMETERY LOT SALES                      16,450.00 16,450.00 25,000.00

790-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         700.00 1,400.00 500.00

790-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 1,080.00 0.00 106,520.00

CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 18,430.00 18,000.00 132,200.00

EXPENDITURES                                                                      CEMETERY FUND - 790
Account # Account Description 2021-22 Recmnd 2020-21 Budget 2019-20 Budget

790-4950-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   11,430.00 11,000.00 10,000.00

790-4950-523600 DUES & FEES                             200.00 200.00 200.00

790-4950-531100 SUPPLIES                                6,800.00 6,800.00 2,000.00

790-4950-542500 CAPITAL OUTLAY - OTHER             0.00 0.00 120,000.00

CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 18,430.00 18,000.00 132,200.00

CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 18,430.00
CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 18,430.00

Page 12 of 12



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    AWARD BID – ALLEN STREET SIDEWALK _____  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO AWARD THE BID TO SUMMIT CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC. IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$147,244.50  

 
    FUNDS ARE BUDGETED IN SPLOST VI 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
BID DEADLINE AND OPENING: JUNE 10, 2021 AT 1:30 PM     
 
TWO RESPONSIVE BIDS WERE RECEIVED AND CERTIFIED BY TURNIPSEED ENGINEERS: 

• SUMMIT CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC $147,244.50 
• JERRY TOWNLEY CONCRETE, INC   $159,980.00 
• BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURES, LLC   NON-RESPONSIVE 

          

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

APPROVE OR AMEND 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVED BIDDER – SUMMIT CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT LLC. IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $147,244.50 
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    12    
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    AWARD BID – ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS, PHASE I _____  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO AWARD THE BID TO BLOUNT CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $247,819. 71 
 (BID AMOUNT OF $349,644.02 LESS $101,824.31 FOR CHANGE ORDER NO. 1) 
 

    FUNDS ARE BUDGETED IN SPLOST VI 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDE PAVING OF MAIN STREET, MEMORY LANE AND JACK HEARD 
ROAD 
 

BID DEADLINE AND OPENING: JUNE 10, 2021 AT 2:00 PM     
 

TWO RESPONSIVE BIDS WERE RECEIVED AND CERTIFIED BY TURNIPSEED ENGINEERS: 
• BLOUNT CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, LLC   $349,644.02 

LESS CHANGE ORDER NO. 1    ($101,824.31) 
         $247,819.71 
 

• SUMMIT CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC $445,865.61      

CHANGE ORDER IS TO REDUCE PROJECT SCOPE REMOVING PART ONE FOR JACK HEARD 
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS. 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

APPROVE OR AMEND 
 

 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:    

STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVED BIDDER WITH CHANGE ORDER – BLOUNT CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY INC.  IN THE AMOUNT OF $247,819.71 
 

 

      
 
REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    13    
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: ___ROAD REHABILITATION JOINT PROJECT – HOWSER MILL  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
 

   
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: Dawson County has approached the City of Dawsonville about rehabilitation of the jointly 
managed Howser Mill Road, including (FDR) full depth reclamation, repairs, and repaving. Dawson County personnel were under the 
impression this project had previously been discussed with the City and agreed upon. However, it had never been discussed with city 
personnel. City staff advised the county that this road was not as high on our priority list as were many others. Original cost per the 
county bid documents from Blount Construction: Dawson County 15,650’ at a cost of $1,666,908.20 or $106.52/foot; City of 
Dawsonville 1,300’ at a cost of $182,498.98 or $140.39/foot. 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: Upon review of the county documents, the following issues were identified: 
 

1. Issue - Why was the City’s cost per foot more than the county? Their answer was due to curb and gutter on city’s portion. 
However, the city was listed as having 1,300’ but only has curb/gutter on 500’. 

2. Issue - What were the plans for the turn lane into the Howser Mill subdivision? Initially, no repairs. If FDR, our cost for the turn 
lane will be $63,635.98 plus $450.00 for striping bringing our grand total to $246,584.96. 

3. Issue - Bid documents only give the city credit for 1,300’. It appears they only measured from the Hwy 53W intersection to the 
end of Howser Mill subdivision fence when actually we go all the way to the church, which is a shortfall of 1,201’. Additionally, 
they did not give us credit for an additional 560’ at the end of Howser Mill Road. This is an additional 1,761’. We have advised 
the county of these inconsistencies. 

4. Issue - If we are credited with our actual footage including the increase of 1,761’ more feet and charged at a range rate of 
$106.52 to $140.39 that is an additional cost to the city of $187,581.72 to $247,226.79 bringing our grand total to $434,166.68 
to $493,811.75. 

5.  We could possibly cover this out of reserves, which would put our reserve balance right at the six-month level, to be 
reimbursed by SPLOST VII. However, that would be ¼ of our total SPLOST VII paving/sidewalk allotment of $2,000,000.00. 

6. We have other streets with much greater need, including Maple Street, Pearl Chambers Drive, Pearl Chambers Court, Pearl 
Chambers Way, Stegall Place, Maple Hill subdivision, Stonewall, Burts Crossing I, and Rain Hill subdivisions. If we fund this 
project, others must be deducted. These residents would rightfully question our decision. 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
1. Don’t pave our portion of Howser Mill Road at this time. Bid city portion at future date without FDR, just milling and topcoat 

as city’s portion does not need FDR.  
2. Complete work on Howser Mill Road utilizing the $125,000.00 set aside in SPLOST VII toward a “mutually beneficial 

project”, which would still leave a balance between $271,888.52 to $368,811.75 that would be taken out of reserve for 
reimbursement out of SPLOST VII. The county would have to agree that project is acceptable. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Based on the concerns addressed above, staff recommend option #1, do not proceed with this project. 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #___14________ 
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   FINANCIAL POLICY - INVESTMENTS 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  N/A      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO DETERMINE A CHANGE IN THE FINANCIAL POLICY SECTION ON INVESTMENTS WHETHER TO 
INCLUDE WORDING RELATED TO BROKERS AND DEALERS OR TO REMOVE INVESTMENT OPTION 
OF BROKERS AND DEALERS  

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

CONFLICT IN POLICY: BROKERS ARE NOT UNDER FDIC AND SHOULD BE UNDER  
SIPC (SECURITIES INVESTORS PROTECTION CORPORATION) WHICH IS NOT MENTIONED IN 
THE POLICY.   
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
  REVIEW, DISCUSS AND VOTE  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
  

  

 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: William Illg, Councilmember Post #2______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15     
 

 

 



 

X. Investments 
 

A. Scope 
 
 

This investment policy applies to all funds under the City of Dawsonville’s control.  The policy 
excludes retirement funds held by a third party. 

 
B. Objectives 

 
 

The following investment objectives shall be met with this policy: 
 
 

1. Safety – Preservation of principal shall always be the foremost objective in any investment 
transaction involving City funds. Those investing funds on the City’s behalf must first ensure that 
capital losses are avoided by limiting credit and interest risk. Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the 
failure of the security issues or backer. Interest risk is the risk that market value portfolios will fall due 
to an increase in general interest rates. 

 
2. Liquidity – The second objective shall be the maintenance of sufficient liquidity within the 
investment portfolio. The City’s investment portfolio shall be structured such that securities mature at 
the time when cash is needed to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity). Additionally, since all 
possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should maintain some securities with 
active secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity). 

 
3. Return on Investment – The third objective shall be the realization of competitive investment rates, 
relative to the risk being assumed. However, yield on the City’s investment portfolio is of secondary 
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. 

 
C. Delegation of Authority 

 
 

Investment decisions shall be approved by the Mayor and City Council.  Management of the 
investment program is the responsibility of the Finance Administrator, acting on behalf of the Mayor 
and City Council. The overall responsibility for the daily investment activities will be assigned to the 
Finance Administrator. The Finance Administrator may designate an employee or employees to 
assist with the management and implementation of the City’s investment program. 

 
Responsibilities to fulfill this authority include opening accounts with banks, brokers, and dealers; 
arranging for the safekeeping of securities; and executing necessary documents. The controls are 
designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, error, misrepresentation by third 
parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets, and/or imprudent action by staff and City 
officials. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided for under the terms 
of the policy. 

 
D. Authorized Investments 

 
 

All investment activity is required to be in compliance with Chapter 83 of Title 36 of the Official Code 
of Georgia, which establishes guidelines for local government investment procedures. 
The City of Dawsonville may invest funds subject to its control and jurisdiction in only such



 

investment instruments permitted by State of Georgia law for local governments including the 
following: 

 
1. Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) issued by banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage must be collateralized by securities with a 
market value equal to at least 110% of the deposit. Only those securities described in Georgia Code 
§50-17-59 can be pledged as collateral; 

 
 

2. Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) issued by savings and loans associations issued by the Federal 
Saving s and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC). Deposits in excess of the FSLIC coverage must 
be collateralized by securities equal to at least 110% of the deposit. Only those securities described 
in Georgia Code §50-17-59 can be pledged as collateral; 

 
3. Obligations issued by the United States government; 

 
 

4. Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States government or a United States 
government agency; 

 
5. Obligation of any corporation of the United States government; 

 
 

6. Obligation of the State of Georgia or of other states; 
 
 

7. Obligation of other political subdivision of the State of Georgia; 
 
 

8. The Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Georgia managed by the State 
Department of Administrative Services, Fiscal Division; 

 
 

E. Prudence 
 
 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person” standard 
and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Under the “prudent person” 
standard, investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well 
as the probable revenue to be gained. 

 
The Finance Administrator and all designees acting in accordance with 1) written procedures, 2) 
this investment policy, and 3) exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for 
an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations 
are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse development. 

 
F. Diversification and Maturity Limitations 

 
 

It is the goal of the City of Dawsonville to diversify its investment portfolio.  Invested funds shall be 
diversified to minimize risk or loss resulting from over concentration of assets in specific maturity, 
specific issuer, or specific class of securities.



 

To achieve the aforementioned objective of adequate liquidity within City’s portfolio, the City shall 
attempt to match investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Matching maturities with 
cash flow dates will reduce the need to sell securities prior to maturity, thus reducing market risk. 

 
G. Safekeeping and Custody 

 
 

All investment securities purchased by the City of Dawsonville shall be delivered against 
payment and shall be held in a third-party safekeeping account by the trust department of a bank 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The City Manager or Finance 
Administrator shall be responsible for the selection of a financial institution for this purpose, as 
well as the execution of a written safekeeping agreement with the trustee. 

 
H. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

 
 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process will refrain from personal business 
activity that would conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which would impair 
their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials will 
disclose to the City Manager any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct 
business with the City, and they will further disclose any large personal financial/investment 
positions that would be related to the performance of the City’s portfolio. Employees and 
investment officials will subordinate their personal investment transactions to those of the City 
particularly with regard to the time of purchases and sales. 

 
I. Relationships with Banks and Brokers 

 
 

The City of Dawsonville will select depositories through the City’s banking services procurement 
process – including formal requests for proposals issued as needed. The City shall seek 
competitive investment rates within its safety criteria. Maximum opportunity shall be provided to 
all local financial institutions to bid and compete for City investments due to the importance of the 
financial institutions to the local economy. 

 
J. Performance Evaluation 

 
 

The Finance Administrator, or his/her designees, will seek to achieve a market average rate of 
return on the City’s portfolio. Given the special safety and liquidity needs of the City, the basis 
used to determine whether market yields are being achieved shall be the six-month Treasury 
Bill. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     16     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

JUNE 15 FOR JUNE 21, 2021 MEETING 

COVID: We continue to monitor information as it comes out about the American Rescue Plan, how much 
the city should expect, how it can be used, and any restrictions. Two temperature readers have been 
installed in City Hall. One for staff has facial recognition capability which identifies staff members and 
captures the temperature readings. The other in the front lobby for customers. No staff are absent due 
to COVID, and we continue to encourage staff to get vaccinated even allowing them to do so on staff time. 

Highway American Flag Program for Veterans: Staff were proud to begin transitioning to the responsible 
agency that installs the crosses and American flags around town every Memorial Day, Independence Day 
and Veteran’s Day. For Memorial Day, city personnel installed flags along Hwy 9 N and S as well as Shoal 
Creek Road. Other groups installed the flags on Highway 53 E and W. Then, in early June, city personnel 
were responsible for taking all the flags down and placing them in storage. Starting with the 4th of July, staff 
will assume responsibility for all the flag installation and takedown. We plan to put them up June 28-29 and 
take them down July 6-7. 
 
GRHOF/Dawsonville History Museum: Substantial improvements continue under the direction of Cindy 
Elliott. On May 29th, the GRHOF hosted their Annual Memorial Day Car Show. With COVID the event was 
cancelled in 2020. This event, a fund raiser for the museum, was a great success. On June 14th, work started 
on installation of water/sewer in the Pirkle Room Warming Kitchen. Scott Adams, volunteer, was recently 
selected as a Hometown Hero by the Chamber of Commerce. In the four months since the museum 
reopened in February, it has already made more money than in 2019 or 2020.  They have a Corn Hole 
Tournament scheduled for July 10th.  
 
 
Food Truck Night: With the continuous and forecasted rain, the June 11th food truck night was moved to 
the Farmer’s Market, and we had our biggest crowd ever with an estimated 650 people in attendance. The 
July 9th event, originally scheduled to be held in Main Street Park, has been moved to the Farmer’s Market 
due to the need for shade in the heat of summer. After the event, a movie night paid for and sponsored by 
Local Church Dawsonville Campus, formally Mountain Lake Church will be held on the amphitheater lawn. 
The classic Disney movie Moana will be shown.  
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed Engineering is developing the final design as well as the USDA 
funding package for this priority project. 
 
Water System Upgrades: We have started the EPD approval procedure for drilling a new well. Once 
approved, we can begin any design, drilling or any related work on a filter system for what would become 
well #112. We recommend moving the water tower project further out on our five-year plan, perhaps to 
FY 24 or 25. This depends on turnover rates of our water, which in turn is based on demand. The new well 
is a higher priority. 
 
Severe Storms: With heavy rainfall all last week and more this week, the Utility Department responded to 
a high-water alarm at the WWTP and power outages at the Farmington Woods Lift Station keeping them 
out most of the night, both were handled with no problem. Public Works staff responded to two 



consecutive nights with sudden storms dropping over 2” of rain in less than an hour on the city. We are 
happy to report that we experienced no flooding at Flat Creek or at Jack Heard Street. The work we required 
to be done by the contractor at Jack Heard continues to handle the stormwater flow with ease. 
 
GDOT SAP Grant:  We were awarded a grant from GDOT for about $21,833.00 that will be used for road 
striping, crosswalks, stop bars and street signs making our city safer. The city will provide a 30% match of 
$9,357.00 match. 
 
JC Burt Road Paving: In a joint paving project with Dawson County, the improvements to JC Burt Road were 
completed at a cost to the city of about $3,400.00. 
 
Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this wonderful 
addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park project continues as we work with our Eagle Scout candidate. Trees have been 
planted, benches installed and some of the signage erected. Work should continue as the project 
is completed by the end of summer. There is now a sidewalk from the new Oakdale subdivision to 
the dog park from which people can easily access Main Street Park. We hope to connect the 
Stonewall subdivision as well. 

• With the delay involved with the trail IGA with the county, the Eagle Scout candidate had to 
withdraw this project from his application and select a project elsewhere. We will continue to work 
with the county to get an IGA in place. We are meeting the week of June 21st with EMS personnel 
and other in hopes of getting this project started. 

• The Eagle Scout candidate who is designing, will construct and install a lending library in the vicinity 
of the Main Street Park Playground continues his work.  

• The contractor should start preparing and pouring the concrete pad for the fitness pads next the 
week of June 21st depending on Mother Nature’s rainfall and the availability of concrete. 

• The contractor should start work on the concrete floors for the two picnic shelters the end of June 
or in early July. 

• With the approval by the City Council, the modular skate park elements have been ordered and 
the concrete pad is ready for pouring and may be poured before the end of the week. 

• Donations continue to come in for the park. Most recently, Larry Grizzle is donating a swing in 
honor of his wife Linda, long time BOE employee. 

• June 26th the Women’s Club will feature Main Street Park’s pollinator garden as part of their annual 
tour. 

 
Leak Adjustments: at 3 addresses for these amounts: 

Water   $319.94  Sewer   $248.85 

Total     $568.79 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/21/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH MAY 31, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   17      
 

 

 



REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Fees 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Department: 

Council 
Mayor 
Elections 
Administration 
City Hall building 
Animal control 
Roads 
Parks 
Planning and zoning 
Economic development 

Total expenditures 

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Transfer in From Reserves 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
GENERAL FUND 

July I, 2020 - May 31, 2021 

Budget Actual 

$ 1,235,050 $ 1,598,615 

115,975 147,992 
25,000 134,020 

269,200 268,070 
234,473 65,299 

1,879,698 2,213,996 

99,215 87,714 
21,380 16,746 

739,865 774,052 

118,000 149,439 

1,500 143 

537,517 526,192 

47,000 637,789 

285,721 299,300 
29,500 36,000 

1,879,698 2,527,375 

(313,379) 

313,379 

Percentage 0.84 

129.44% 
127.61% 
536.08% 

99.58% 
27.85% 

117.78% 

88.41% 
78.33% 

0.00% 
104.62% 

126.64% 
9.53% 

97.89% 
1357.00% 

104.75% 
122.03% 

134.46% 



REVENUES 
Water fees 
Sewer fees 

Garbage fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Depreciation 
Garbage service 
Group insurance 
Insurance 
Interest 
Payroll taxes 
Professional 
Miscellaneous 
Repairs/supplies 
Retirement 
Salaries 
Technical services 
Utilities 

Total expenditures 

INCOME (LOSS) 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND 

July I, 2020 - May 31, 2021 

Budget 

$ 680,000 $ 

794,000 
203,500 
205,310 

1,882,810 

574,000 
212,000 

85,056 
38,200 
87,450 
22,752 
98,000 
52,500 

I 87,500 
17,000 

297,402 
66,000 

144,950 

1,882,810 

Actual Percentage 

712,992 104.85% 
833,899 105.03% 
210,102 103.24% 
318,408 155.09% 

2,075,401 110.23% 

378,598 65.96% 
214,388 101.13% 

81,385 95.68% 
46,622 122.05% 
80,039 91.53% 
20,252 89.01% 

128,104 130.72% 

48,816 92.98% 
194,312 103.63% 

23,406 137.68% 
268,230 90.19% 

81,498 123.48% 
I28,846 88.89% 

1,694,496 90.00% 

380,905 



SPLOSTVI 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays) 
City hall acquisition 
Roads and sidewalks 
Public works equipment - roads 
Sewer projects 
Public works equipment - sewer 
Water projects 
Public works equipment - water 
Farmers market 
Parks and recreation 

Total expenditures 

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Transfer in From Reserves 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
SPLOST 

July I, 2020- May 31, 2021 

Bud~et 

1,062,750 
2,000 

1,064,750 

680,000 
375,750 

9,000 

1,064,750 

Actual Percentage 

1,477,799 139.05% 
366 I8.3I% 

0.00% 

I,478,I65 138.83% 

692,34I 101.81% 
74,733 19.89% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

8,285 92.06% 
63,397 0.00% 

838,756 78.77% 

639,409 

639,409 


	1 06.21.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 06.07.2021 Minutes.draft
	06.07.2021 MINUTES.draft.pdf
	06.07.2021 IGA_SPLOST VII.pdf
	06.07.2021 IGA_Shared Parking.pdf
	06.07.2021 IGA_Law Enforcement.pdf

	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GMA CONVENTION
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 06.21.2021_EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA
	9. 2 anx c2100043
	10. 1 Executive Summary ANXC2100192
	10. 2 ANX-ZA C2100192
	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RESOLUTION BUDGET FY22
	11. 2 Resolution - Adopt the Budget FY 2021-2022
	11. 3 Budget FY 2021-2022_Final
	BUDGET FY 2021-22

	12. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ALLEN STREET SIDEWALK
	12. 2 SIDEWALK
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS
	13. ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS
	14. 1 Howser Mill Road Rehab Executive Summary
	15. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda FINANCIAL POLICY
	15. 2 Financial Policy_Investments
	16. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	16. 2 06212021 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	17. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	17. 2 Financial Reports



